ARENA PHARMACEUTICALS INC Form 424B5 July 09, 2009 Table of Contents

> Filed pursuant to Rule 424(b)(5) Registration Statement No. 333-155660

PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

To Prospectus dated March 23, 2009

12,500,000 Shares

ARENA PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

Common Stock

\$4.17 per share

Arena Pharmaceuticals, Inc. is offering 12,500,000 shares.

The last reported sale price of our common stock on July 7, 2009 was 4.67 per share.

Trading symbol: Nasdaq Global Market ARNA

This investment involves risks. See Risk Factors beginning on page S-4.

	Per Share	Total
Public offering price	\$4.17	\$ 52,125,000
Underwriting discount	\$0.17	\$ 2,125,000
Proceeds, before expenses, to Arena Pharmaceuticals, Inc	\$4.00	\$ 50,000,000

The underwriter expects to deliver the shares against payment on or about July 13, 2009.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved of anyone s investment in these securities or determined if this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus are truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

Piper Jaffray

The date of this prospectus supplement is July 8, 2009.

Table of Contents

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
Prospectus Supplement	
Prospectus Supplement Summary	S-1
Risk Factors	S-4
Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements	S-6
<u>Use of Proceeds</u>	S-7
<u>Dilution</u>	S-8
<u>Underwriting</u>	S-10
<u>Legal Matters</u>	S-12
<u>Experts</u>	S-12
Where You Can Find More Information	S-12
Important Information Incorporated by Reference	S-12
Prospectus	
About this Prospectus	i
<u>Summary</u>	1
Risk Factors	2
Forward-Looking Statements	2
<u>Use of Proceeds</u>	3
Description of Capital Stock	3
Plan of Distribution	7
<u>Legal Matters</u>	11
<u>Experts</u>	11
Where You Can Find More Information	11
Incorporation of Certain Information by Reference	11

We provide information to you about this offering of shares of our common stock in two separate documents that are bound together: (1) this prospectus supplement, which describes the specific details regarding this offering; and (2) the accompanying prospectus, which provides general information, some of which may not apply to this offering. Generally, when we refer to this prospectus, we are referring to both documents combined. If information in this prospectus supplement is inconsistent with the accompanying prospectus, you should rely on this prospectus supplement.

You should rely only on information contained in or incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. We have not, and Piper Jaffray & Co. has not, authorized anyone to provide you with information that is different. We are offering to sell and seeking offers to buy shares of our common stock only in jurisdictions where offers and sales are permitted. The information contained in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference herein and therein are accurate only as of their respective dates, regardless of the time of delivery of this prospectus supplement or of any sale of our common stock.

Arena Pharmaceuticals[®], Arena[®] and our corporate logo are registered service marks of Arena. CART and BRL Screening are unregistered service marks of Arena. APD is an abbreviation for Arena Pharmaceuticals Development. All other brand names or trademarks appearing in this

prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus are the property of their respective holders.

i

Table of Contents

PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT SUMMARY

The items in the following summary are described in more detail later in this prospectus supplement and in the accompanying prospectus. This summary provides an overview of selected information and does not contain all the information you should consider before investing in our common stock. Therefore, you should read the more detailed information set out in this prospectus supplement, accompanying prospectus and the other information incorporated by reference herein and therein carefully.

Our Business

We are a clinical-stage biopharmaceutical company committed to discovering and developing innovative therapies offering significant medical advances and new options for patients. We are focused on discovering, developing and commercializing oral drugs in four major therapeutic areas: cardiovascular, central nervous system, inflammatory and metabolic diseases. Our lead drug candidate, lorcaserin hydrochloride, or lorcaserin, is being investigated in a Phase 3 clinical trial program for weight management. Our broad pipeline of novel compounds targets G protein-coupled receptors, or GPCRs, which are a validated class of drug targets that mediate the majority of cell-to-cell communication in humans. Our pipeline includes compounds being evaluated independently and with partners, including Merck & Co., Inc. and Ortho-McNeil-Janssen Pharmaceuticals. Inc.

We intend to commercialize our drug candidates with partners or independently. We have not received regulatory approval for marketing or selling any drugs. We have also not generated commercial revenues from selling any drugs other than in connection with manufacturing drugs for Siegfried Ltd.

Unless otherwise specified or required by context, references in this prospectus supplement to we, us, our and Arena refer to Arena Pharmaceuticals, Inc., and its wholly owned subsidiaries on a consolidated basis.

Description of Capital Stock

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, as amended, authorizes us to issue 242,500,000 shares of common stock, par value \$.0001 per share, and 7,500,000 shares of preferred stock, par value \$.0001 per share.

Intellectual Property

As of July 6, 2009, we owned issued patents that cover compositions of matter for lorcaserin and related compounds and methods of treatment utilizing lorcaserin and related compounds in 61 jurisdictions, including the United States, Japan, Germany, France, the United Kingdom, Italy, Spain China, and Canada, and had applications pending in approximately 10 other jurisdictions, of which those with the largest pharmaceutical markets were Brazil and Poland. Based on sales statistics provided by IMS Health, the jurisdictions where lorcaserin patents have been issued accounted for more than 94% of global pharmaceutical sales in 2006, while jurisdictions where lorcaserin patents remain pending accounted for more than 2% of global pharmaceutical sales in that same year. The patent on lorcaserin issued by the United States Patent and Trademark Office is serial number US 6,953,787 and the corresponding patent granted by the European Patent Office is serial number EP 1 411 881 B1. Other of our lorcaserin patent applications, including those directed to the lorcaserin HCl salt, the hemihydrate of the lorcaserin HCl salt as well as its crystalline forms, synthetic routes and intermediates useful in the manufacturing of lorcaserin and pharmaceutical combinations of lorcaserin and phentermine, have all been filed in a lesser number of commercially important jurisdictions. The earliest priority date for the patents on lorcaserin is 2002. The terms of these patents are capable of continuing into 2023 in most jurisdictions without taking into account (i) any patent term adjustment or extension regimes of any country or (ii) any additional term of exclusivity we might obtain by virtue of the later filed patent applications.

Table of Contents

As of July 6, 2009, we owned, in part or in whole, or had exclusively licensed the following patents: 31 in the United States, 7 in Japan, 19 in Germany, 19 in France, 19 in the United Kingdom, 17 in Italy, 17 in Spain, 2 in Canada, 7 in China, and approximately 626 in other jurisdictions. In addition, as of July 6, 2009, we had approximately 1,173 patent applications before the United States Patent and Trademark Office, foreign patent offices and international patent authorities. These patents and patent applications are divided into 97 distinct families of related patents that are directed to chemical compositions of matter, methods of treatment using chemical compositions, GPCR genes, CART, Melanophore technology, or other novel screening methods. One of our patent families was exclusively in-licensed and contains a single issued patent. Eighty-eight of our patent families, which include a total of about 665 patents and 1,106 patent applications, were invented solely by our employees. Seven of our patent families, which include a total of about 90 patents and 59 patent applications, were the subject of joint inventions by our employees and the employees of other entities. The remaining patent family which includes 8 pending applications and no patents was invented by the employees of a contract research organization and assigned in its entirety to us. There is no assurance that any of our patent applications will issue, or that any of the patents will be enforceable or will cover a drug or other commercially significant product or method. Except for the US patents relating to our Melanophore technology, the term of most of our other current patents commenced, and most of our future patents, if any, will commence, on the date of issuance and terminate 20 years from the earliest effective filing date of the patent application. Since our US Melanophore patents were issued under now superseded rules that provided a patent term of 17 years from the date of issuance, the term of these patents is scheduled to end in 2012. Because the time from filing a patent application relating to our business to the issuance, if ever, of the patent is often more than three years and because any marketing and regulatory approval for a drug often occurs several years after the related patent application is filed, the resulting market exclusivity afforded by any patent on our drug candidates and technologies may be substantially less than 20 years. In the United States, the European Union and some other jurisdictions, patent term extensions are available for certain delays in either patent office proceedings or marketing and regulatory approval processes. However, due to the specific requirements for obtaining these extensions, there is no assurance that our patents will be afforded extensions even if we encounter significant delays in patent office proceedings or marketing and regulatory approval.

Certain Balance Sheet Data

Our cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments available for sale was approximately \$39.6 million as of June 30, 2009.

As adjusted to give effect to the receipt on July 6, 2009 of approximately \$95.6 million in net proceeds (after deducting related expenses) from a \$100 million secured loan obtained under a Facility Agreement, dated June 17, 2009, with Deerfield Private Design Fund, L.P., Deerfield Private Design International, L.P., Deerfield Partners, L.P., Deerfield International Limited, Deerfield Special Situations Fund, L.P., and Deerfield Special Situations Fund International Limited, which we refer to herein as the Deerfield Loan, our cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments available for sale as of June 30, 2009 was approximately \$135.2 million.

Corporate Information

We were incorporated in Delaware in April 1997, and our principal executive offices are located at 6166 Nancy Ridge Drive, San Diego, California 92121. Our telephone number is (858) 453-7200 and website address is http://www.arenapharm.com. Information contained in, or accessible through, our website does not constitute a part of this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus.

S-2

Table of Contents

THE OFFERING

Common stock offered 12,500,000 shares

Common stock to be outstanding after this offering 92,624,580 shares

Use of proceeds We intend to use the net proceeds from this offering for preclinical and clinical

development of our drug candidates, for discovery research for new drug candidates and for general corporate purposes, including working capital. In addition, we may use a portion of the proceeds to acquire drugs or drug candidates, technologies, businesses or

other assets.

Following the closing of this offering, we will be required to use \$10.0 million of the net proceeds from this offering to repay an equivalent amount of the outstanding principal of the Deerfield Loan. We must make such payment within one business day following the date we receive the proceeds from this offering. This will satisfy our obligation to repay the first scheduled payment of \$10.0 million due in July 2010.

Risk factors You should read the Risk Factors section of this prospectus supplement and in the

documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement for a discussion of factors to consider before deciding to purchase shares of our common stock.

Nasdaq Global Market symbol ARNA

The number of shares of common stock to be outstanding after this offering as reflected in the table above is based on the actual number of shares outstanding as of July 6, 2009, which was 80,124,580, and does not include, as of that date:

1,222,050 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of outstanding warrants at an exercise price of \$6.98 per share;

916,213 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of outstanding warrants at an exercise price of \$14.03 per share;

28,000,000 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of outstanding warrants at an exercise price of \$5.42 per share;

7,283,823 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of outstanding options at a weighted average exercise price of \$8.95 per share;

 $1,\!737,\!750\ performance-based\ restricted\ stock\ unit\ awards\ outstanding\ under\ our\ 2006\ Long-Term\ Incentive\ Plan,\ as\ amended;$

6,488,112 shares of common stock available for future issuance under our 2009 Long-Term Incentive Plan;

1,412,311 shares of common stock available for future issuance under our 2009 Employee Stock Purchase Plan; and

101,669 shares of common stock available for future issuance under our Deferred Compensation Plan.

S-3

Table of Contents

RISK FACTORS

Before you make a decision to invest in our common stock, you should consider carefully the risks described below, and in the section entitled Risk Factors contained in our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2009, as filed with the SEC on May 11, 2009, together with other information in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and the information incorporated by reference herein and therein. If any of the following events actually occur, our business, operating results, prospects or financial condition could be materially and adversely affected. This could cause the trading price of our common stock to decline and you may lose all or part of your investment. The risks described below are not the only ones that we face. Additional risks not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may also affect our business operations.

Additional Risks Related to Our Business

We have significant indebtedness and debt service obligations as a result of our \$100 million secured loan, which may adversely affect our cash flow, cash position and stock price.

We substantially increased our total debt and debt service obligations when we received a \$100 million secured loan on July 6, 2009. This loan matures on June 17, 2013, and the outstanding principal accrues interest at a rate of 7.75% per annum, payable quarterly in arrears. The principal is required to be repaid as follows: \$10 million in July 2010 (which will be satisfied by our principal payment to be made immediately following this offering), \$20 million in July 2011, \$30 million in July 2012, and the remainder at maturity. We also may be required to make the scheduled repayments earlier in connection with certain equity issuances. In addition, we are required to make mandatory prepayments of the loan upon certain changes of control and in the event we issue equity securities (other than certain exempted issuances) at a price of less than \$2.00 per share.

On or before June 17, 2011, the lender may elect to provide us with an additional loan in a principal amount of up to \$20 million under the same terms as the \$100 million loan, with the additional loan also maturing on June 17, 2013.

In the future, if we are unable to generate cash from operations sufficient to meet these debt obligations, we will need to obtain additional funds from other sources, which may include one or more financings. However, we may be unable to obtain sufficient additional funds when we need them, on favorable terms or at all. The sale of equity or convertible debt securities in the future may be dilutive to our stockholders, and debt-financing arrangements may require us to enter into covenants that would restrict certain business activities or our ability to incur further indebtedness, and may contain other terms that are not favorable to our stockholders or us.

Also, if we are unable to generate cash from operations or obtain additional funds from other sources sufficient to meet these debt obligations, or we need to use existing cash to fund these debt obligations, we may have to delay or curtail some or all of our research, development and commercialization programs or sell or license some or all of our assets. Our indebtedness could have significant additional negative consequences, including, without limitation:

increasing our vulnerability to general adverse economic conditions;

limiting our ability to obtain additional funds; and

placing us at a possible competitive disadvantage to less leveraged competitors and competitors that have better access to capital resources.

If an event of default occurs under our loan documents, including in certain circumstances the warrants issued in connection with the loan transaction, the lender may declare the outstanding principal balance and accrued but unpaid interest owed to it immediately due and payable, which would have a material

S-4

Table of Contents

adverse affect on our financial position. We may not have sufficient cash to satisfy this obligation. Also, if a default occurs under our \$100 million loan, and we are unable to repay the lender, the lender could seek to enforce its rights under its security interest in substantially all of our assets. If this were to happen, we may lose some or all of our assets in order to satisfy our debt, which could cause our business to fail.

Additional Risks Related to Our Securities

There are a substantial number of shares of our common stock eligible for future sale in the public market, and the sale of these shares could cause the market price of our common stock to fall.

There were 80,124,580 shares of our common stock outstanding as of July 6, 2009. We also had outstanding as of July 6, 2009 a seven-year warrant issued in June 2006 to purchase 916,213 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of \$14.03 per share and a seven-year warrant issued in August 2008 to purchase 1,222,050 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of \$6.98 per share. Such warrants were adjusted, as a result of certain equity sales following their issuance, to decrease the exercise price and increase the number of shares issuable upon exercise of the warrants. Future equity sales below the pre-defined warrant adjustment price may result in additional adjustments to any such warrants then outstanding.

On July 6, 2009, in connection with our receipt of a \$100 million loan, we issued warrants to purchase 28,000,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of \$5.42 per share. In addition, in certain circumstances we may be obligated to issue additional warrants to purchase up to 5,600,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of \$5.42 per share. All of these warrants are exercisable until June 17, 2013. We have agreed to file a registration statement covering the resale of all of the shares underlying these warrants.

In addition to our outstanding warrants, as of July 6, 2009, there were (i) options to purchase 7,283,823 shares of our common stock outstanding under our equity incentive plans at a weighted-average exercise price of \$8.95, (ii) 1,737,750 performance-based restricted stock unit awards outstanding under our 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended, (iii) 6,488,112 additional shares of common stock remaining issuable under our 2009 Long-Term Incentive Plan, (iv) 1,412,311 shares of common stock remaining issuable under our 2009 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, and (v) 101,669 shares of common stock remaining issuable under our Deferred Compensation Plan.

The shares described above, when issued, will be available for immediate resale in the public market. The market price of our common stock could decline as a result of such resales due to the increased number of shares available for sale in the market.

Management will have broad discretion as to the use of the proceeds from this offering, and we may not use the proceeds effectively.

Other than the \$10 million of outstanding principal we are required to repay under the Deerfield Loan following our receipt of proceeds from this offering, we have not designated any portion of the net proceeds from this offering to be used for any particular purpose. Accordingly, our management will have broad discretion as to the application of the net proceeds from this offering, and could spend the proceeds in ways that do not necessarily improve our operating results or enhance the value of our common stock.

S-5

Table of Contents

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, including the documents that we incorporate by reference herein and therein, contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Act, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act. These forward-looking statements can generally be identified as such because the context of the statement will include words such as may, will, intends, plans, believes, anticipates, expect estimates, predicts, potential, continue, likely, unlikely or opportunity, the negative of these words or words of similar import. Similar statements that describe our future plans, strategies, intentions, expectations, objectives, goals or prospects are also forward-looking statements.

Discussions containing these forward-looking statements may be found, among other places, in the Business and Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations sections incorporated by reference from our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K, as well as any amendments thereto reflected in subsequent filings with the SEC. These forward-looking statements are based largely on our expectations and projections about future events and future trends affecting our business, and are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated in the forward-looking statements. The risks and uncertainties include, among others, those noted in Risk Factors above and those included in the documents that we incorporate by reference herein.

In addition, past financial and/or operating performance is not necessarily a reliable indicator of future performance and you should not use our historical performance to anticipate results or future period trends. We can give no assurances that any of the events anticipated by the forward-looking statements will occur or, if any of them do, what impact they will have on our results of operations and financial condition. Except as required by law, we undertake no obligation to publicly revise our forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances that arise after the filing of this prospectus supplement or the filing of the accompanying prospectus or documents incorporated by reference herein and therein that include forward-looking statements.

S-6

Table of Contents

USE OF PROCEEDS

We estimate that the net proceeds from the sale of the 12,500,000 shares of common stock we are offering will be approximately \$49.7 million. Net proceeds is what we expect to receive after paying the underwriting discount and other expenses of this offering.

We intend to use the net proceeds from this offering for preclinical and clinical development of our drug candidates, for discovery research for new drug candidates and for general corporate purposes, including working capital. In addition, we may use a portion of the proceeds to acquire drugs or drug candidates, technologies, businesses or other assets. The timing and amount of our actual expenditures will be based on many factors, including the timing and success of our clinical trials, whether we partner any of our internal programs, and whether we choose to curtail some of our research activities. Other than the Deerfield Loan payment described below, we will retain broad discretion in determining how we will allocate the net proceeds from this offering.

Following the closing of this offering, we will be required to use \$10.0 million of the net proceeds from this offering to repay an equivalent amount of the outstanding principal of the Deerfield Loan. We must make such payment within one business day following the date we receive the proceeds from this offering. The Deerfield Loan has a four-year term and accrues interest at a rate of 7.75% per annum, payable quarterly in arrears. The scheduled principal payments are as follows: \$10.0 million by July 2010, \$20.0 million by July 2011, \$30.0 million by July 2012 and the remainder at maturity in June 2013. At any time we may, at our option, prepay any or all of the outstanding principal at par and apply such prepayment amount to the scheduled repayments in forward chronological order. The required repayment of \$10.0 million from the net proceeds of this offering will satisfy our obligation to repay the first scheduled principal payment of \$10.0 million due in July 2010. We intend to use the net proceeds of the Deerfield Loan for preclinical and clinical development of our drug candidates, for discovery research for new drug candidates and for general corporate purposes, including working capital. In addition, we may use a portion of such proceeds to acquire drugs or drug candidates, technologies, businesses or other assets.

Until we use the net proceeds of this offering, we intend to invest the funds in short-term, investment grade, interest-bearing securities.

S-7

Table of Contents

DILUTION

Our net tangible book value on March 31, 2009 was approximately \$50.1 million, or \$0.67 per share of common stock. Net tangible book value is total assets minus the sum of liabilities and intangible assets. Net tangible book value per share is net tangible book value divided by the total number of common stock shares outstanding.

After giving effect to the sale on April 14, 2009 of 5,745,591 shares of our common stock to Azimuth Opportunity Ltd., or Azimuth, pursuant to a Common Stock Purchase Agreement dated March 23, 2009, at a price of approximately \$2.61 per share, our pro forma net tangible book value, as of March 31, 2009, would have been approximately \$64.8 million, or \$0.81 per share of common stock.

After giving further effect to the sale of 12,500,000 shares of common stock offered by us in this offering, our pro forma as adjusted net tangible book value on March 31, 2009 would have been approximately \$114.5 million, or \$1.24 per share of common stock. The adjustments made to determine pro forma as adjusted net tangible book value per share are the following:

an increase in total assets to reflect the net proceeds of the offering as described under Use of Proceeds ; and

the addition of the number of shares offered by this prospectus supplement to the number of shares outstanding as of March 31, 2009 and the shares issued in connection with the Azimuth transaction described above.

The following table illustrates the pro forma as adjusted increase in net tangible book value of \$0.43 per share and the dilution (the difference between the offering price per share and pro forma net tangible book value per share) to new investors:

Public offering price per share	\$ 4.17
Pro forma net tangible book value per share on March 31, 2009	\$ 0.81
Increase in pro forma net tangible book value per share attributable to offering	\$ 0.43
Pro forma as adjusted net tangible book value per share on March 31, 2009, after giving effect	
to the offering	\$ 1.24
Dilution per share to new investors in the offering	\$ 2.93

The following table shows the difference between existing stockholders (which includes the sale of 5,745,591 shares of our common stock to Azimuth) and new investors with respect to the number of shares purchased from us, the total consideration paid and the average price paid per share.

	Shares Purchased		Total Consideration		Average Price	
	Number	Percent	Amount	Percent	Pe	r Share
Existing stockholders	80,029,891	86.5%	\$ 853,296,793	94.2%	\$	10.66
New investors	12,500,000	13.5%	\$ 52,125,000	5.8%	\$	4.17
Total	92,529,891	100.0%	\$ 905,421,793	100.0%	\$	9.79

The above discussion and tables are based on 74,284,300 common shares outstanding at March 31, 2009, and do not include, as of that date:

1,106,344 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of outstanding warrants at an exercise price of \$7.71 per share;

829,856 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of outstanding warrants at an exercise price of \$15.49 per share;

S-8

Table of Contents

7,686,675 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of outstanding options at a weighted average exercise price of \$8.90 per share;

1,930,150 performance-based restricted stock unit awards outstanding under our 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended;

55,010 shares of common stock available for future issuance under our 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended;

2,655 shares of common stock available for future issuance under our 2001 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended; and

107,919 shares of common stock available for future issuance under our Deferred Compensation Plan. Moreover, the above discussion does not reflect the impact of the Deerfield Loan, which would increase our net tangible book value and decrease the dilution per share to new investors.

S-9

Table of Contents

UNDERWRITING

We are offering the shares of common stock described in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus through Piper Jaffray & Co (Piper Jaffray). Piper Jaffray is acting as sole underwriter for this offering. We have entered into an underwriting agreement with Piper Jaffray. Subject to the terms and conditions of the underwriting agreement, we have agreed to sell to Piper Jaffray, and Piper Jaffray has agreed to purchase all of the shares offered by us in this offering.

The underwriter has advised us that it has offered the shares to the public at \$4.17 per share. After the initial offering to public, the offering price and other selling terms may be changed by the underwriter.

The following table shows the underwriting fees to be paid to Piper Jaffray by us in connection with this offering.

	Paid by us
Per share	\$ 0.17
Total	\$ 2,125,000

We estimate that the total fees and expenses payable by us, excluding the underwriting discount, will be approximately \$285,000.

We have agreed to indemnify Piper Jaffray against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act, or to contribute to payments that Piper Jaffray may be required to make in respect of those liabilities.

We and certain of our directors and executive officers are subject to lock-up agreements that prohibit us and them, subject to certain exceptions, from offering, pledging, assigning, encumbering, announcing the intention to sell, contracting to sell, selling any option or contract to purchase, purchasing any option or contract to sell, granting any option, right or warrant to purchase, or otherwise transferring or disposing of any shares of our common stock or any securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for shares of our common stock for a period of at least 60 days following the date of this prospectus supplement without the prior written consent of Piper Jaffray.

The 60-day lock-up period in all of the lock-up agreements is subject to extension if (i) during the last 17 days of the lock-up period we issue an earnings release or material news or a material event relating to us occurs or (ii) prior to the expiration of the lock-up period, we announce that we will release earnings results during the 16-day period beginning on the last day of the lock-up period, in which case the restrictions imposed in these lock-up agreements shall continue to apply until the expiration of the 18-day period beginning on the issuance of the earnings release or the occurrence of the material news or material event, unless Piper Jaffray waives the extension in writing.

Our shares are quoted on the Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol ARNA.

To facilitate the offering, Piper Jaffray may engage in transactions that stabilize, maintain or otherwise affect the price of the common stock during and after the offering. Specifically, Piper Jaffray may over- allot or otherwise create a short position in the common stock for its own account by selling more shares of common stock than we have sold to it. Short sales involve the sale by Piper Jaffray of a greater number of shares than it is required to purchase in the offering. Piper Jaffray may close out any short position by purchasing shares in the open market.

In addition, Piper Jaffray may stabilize or maintain the price of the common stock by bidding for or purchasing shares of common stock in the open market and may impose penalty bids. If penalty bids are

Table of Contents

imposed, selling concessions allowed to syndicate members or other broker-dealers participating in the offering are reclaimed if shares of common stock previously distributed in the offering are repurchased, whether in connection with stabilization transactions or otherwise. The effect of these transactions may be to stabilize or maintain the market price of the common stock at a level above that which might otherwise prevail in the open market. The imposition of a penalty bid may also affect the price of the common stock to the extent that it discourages resales of the common stock. The magnitude or effect of any stabilization or other transactions is uncertain. These transactions may be effected on the Nasdaq Global Market or otherwise and, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time. Piper Jaffray may also engage in passive market making transactions in our common stock. Passive market making consists of displaying bids on the Nasdaq Global Market is limited by the prices of independent market makers and effecting purchases limited by those prices in response to order flow. Rule 103 of Regulation M promulgated by the Commission limits the amount of net purchases that each passive market maker may make and the displayed size of each bid. Passive market making may stabilize the market price of the common stock at a level above that which might otherwise prevail in the open market and, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time.

This prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus in electronic format may be made available on the web sites maintained by Piper Jaffray and Piper Jaffray may distribute prospectuses and prospectus supplements electronically.

From time to time in the ordinary course of their respective businesses, Piper Jaffray and certain of its affiliates may in the future engage in commercial banking or investment banking transactions with us and our affiliates.

S-11

Table of Contents

LEGAL MATTERS

Selected legal matters with respect to the validity of common stock offered by this prospectus supplement will be passed upon for us by Cooley Godward Kronish LLP, San Diego, California. Certain legal matters in connection with the common stock offered in this prospectus supplement will be passed upon for Piper Jaffray by Latham & Watkins LLP, San Diego, California.

EXPERTS

Ernst & Young LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, has audited our consolidated financial statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008, and the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, as set forth in their reports, which are incorporated by reference in this prospectus and elsewhere in the registration statement. Our financial statements are incorporated by reference in reliance on Ernst & Young LLP s report, given on their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We have filed with the SEC a registration statement on Form S-3 under the Securities Act with respect to the shares of common stock we are offering under this prospectus supplement. This prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus do not contain all of the information set forth in the registration statement and the exhibits to the registration statement. For further information with respect to us and the securities we are offering under this prospectus supplement, we refer you to the registration statement and the exhibits and schedules filed as a part of the registration statement. We also file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. You may read and copy the registration statement, as well as any other material we file with the SEC, at the SEC s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for more information on the Public Reference Room. The SEC maintains an Internet site that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC, including Arena. The SEC s Internet site can be found at http://www.sec.gov.

IMPORTANT INFORMATION INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The SEC allows us to incorporate by reference into this prospectus supplement the information we file with it, which means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to those documents. Information incorporated by reference is part of this prospectus supplement. Later information filed with the SEC will update and supersede this information. The SEC s Internet site can be found at http://www.sec.gov.

We incorporate by reference the documents listed below and any future filings made with the SEC under Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act until this offering is completed:

our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008, as amended by a Form 10-K/A filed with the SEC on April 28, 2009;

our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2009;

our Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A (other than information furnished rather than filed) filed with the SEC on May 14, 2009;

our Current Reports on Form 8-K (other than information furnished rather than filed) filed with the SEC on January 29, 2009, February 18, 2009, February 26, 2009, March 23,

S-12

Table of Contents

2009, March 30, 2009, April 14, 2009, April 23, 2009, June 8, 2009, June 23, 2009, July 1, 2009, July 6, 2009 and July 8, 2009;

the description of our Stockholders Rights Agreement contained in our registration statement on Form 8-A filed with the SEC on November 15, 2002, as amended on December 30, 2003 and November 16, 2006, including any amendments or reports filed for the purposes of updating this description; and

the description of our common stock contained in our registration statement on Form 8-A filed with the SEC on July 26, 2000, including any amendments or reports filed for the purposes of updating this description.

You may request a copy of these filings, at no cost, by contacting us at:

Arena Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Attention: Investor Relations

6166 Nancy Ridge Drive

San Diego, CA 92121

Telephone number: (858) 453-7200

In accordance with Rule 412 of the Securities Act, any statement contained in a document incorporated by reference herein shall be deemed modified or superseded to the extent that a statement contained herein or in any other subsequently filed document which also is or is deemed to be incorporated by reference herein modifies or supersedes such statement.

S-13

Table of Contents

PROSPECTUS

Arena Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Common Stock

We may, from time to time, offer to sell up to 25,000,000 shares of our common stock at prices and on terms described in one or more supplements to this prospectus.

This prospectus describes some of the general terms that may apply to an offering of our common stock. The specific terms and any other information relating to a specific offering will be set forth in a post-effective amendment to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part or in a supplement to this prospectus or may be set forth in one or more documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus. You should read this prospectus, the information incorporated by reference in this prospectus and any prospectus supplement carefully before you invest.

Shares of our common stock may be sold by us to or through underwriters or dealers, directly to purchasers or through agents designated from time to time. For additional information on the methods of sale, you should refer to the section entitled Plan of Distribution in this prospectus. If any underwriters are involved in the sale of any securities with respect to which this prospectus is being delivered, the names of such underwriters and any applicable discounts or commissions and over-allotment options will be set forth in a prospectus supplement. The price to the public of such securities and the net proceeds we expect to receive from such sale will also be set forth in a prospectus supplement.

Our common stock is listed on the Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol ARNA. On March 23, 2009, the last reported sale price of our common stock on the Nasdaq Global Market was \$4.20 per share.

Investing in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. See <u>Risk Factors</u> on page 2 of this prospectus and as updated in our future filings made with the Securities and Exchange Commission, which are incorporated by reference in this prospectus.

This prospectus may not be used to offer or sell any securities unless accompanied by a prospectus supplement.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or determined if this prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The date of this prospectus is March 23, 2009.

Table of Contents

TABLE OF CONTENTS

About This Prospectus	i
Summary	1
Risk Factors	2
Forward-Looking Statements	2
<u>Use of Proceeds</u>	3
Description of Capital Stock	3
Plan of Distribution	7
<u>Legal Matters</u>	11
<u>Experts</u>	11
Where You Can Find More Information	11
Incorporation of Certain Information by Reference	11

You should rely only on the information contained in or incorporated by reference into this prospectus or any applicable prospectus supplement. We have not authorized anyone to provide you with different information. We are not making an offer to sell or seeking an offer to buy shares of our common stock under this prospectus or any applicable prospectus supplement in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted. The information contained in this prospectus, any applicable prospectus supplement and the documents incorporated by reference herein and therein are accurate only as of their respective dates, regardless of the time of delivery of this prospectus or any sale of a security.

About This Prospectus

This prospectus relates to a registration statement on Form S-3 that we filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, using a shelf registration process. Under this shelf registration statement, we may sell from time to time in one or more offerings up to 25,000,000 shares of our common stock described in this prospectus. Each time we sell any of our common stock under this prospectus, we will provide a prospectus supplement that will contain more specific information about the terms of that offering. We may also add, update or change in a prospectus supplement any of the information contained in this prospectus or in documents we have incorporated by reference into this prospectus. This prospectus, together with any applicable prospectus supplement and the documents incorporated by reference into this prospectus, include all material information relating to this offering. You should carefully read both this prospectus and any applicable prospectus supplement together with the additional information described under Where You Can Find More Information before buying common stock in this offering.

i

Table of Contents

Summary

The following summary does not contain all the information that may be important to purchasers of our common stock. Prospective purchasers of our common stock should carefully review the entire prospectus, including the financial statements or other information incorporated by reference in this prospectus and any prospectus supplement, before making an investment decision.

Arena Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

We are a clinical-stage biopharmaceutical company committed to discovering and developing innovative therapies offering significant medical advances and new options for patients. We are focused on discovering, developing and commercializing oral drugs in four major therapeutic areas: cardiovascular, central nervous system, inflammatory and metabolic diseases. Our lead drug candidate, lorcaserin hydrochloride, or lorcaserin, is being investigated in a Phase 3 clinical trial program for the treatment of obesity. Our broad pipeline of novel compounds targets G protein-coupled receptors, or GPCRs, which are a validated class of drug targets that mediate the majority of cell-to-cell communication in humans. Our pipeline includes compounds being evaluated independently and with partners, including Merck & Co., Inc., or Merck, and Ortho-McNeil-Janssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc., or Ortho-McNeil-Janssen.

In September 2006, we initiated the first of two pivotal Phase 3 clinical trials evaluating the efficacy and safety of lorcaserin. The pivotal Phase 3 clinical trials are the trials we believe are necessary to support a new drug application, or NDA, for lorcaserin. The first pivotal trial, known as BLOOM (Behavioral modification and Lorcaserin for Overweight and Obesity Management), is a two-year, randomized, double-blind and placebo-controlled trial that enrolled 3,181 overweight and obese patients. In December 2007, we initiated the second pivotal trial, BLOSSOM (Behavioral modification and Lorcaserin Second Study for Obesity Management). The BLOSSOM trial is a one-year, randomized, double-blind and placebo-controlled trial that enrolled 4,008 overweight and obese patients. In addition to our pivotal trials, we have a lorcaserin Phase 3 clinical trial called BLOOM-DM (Behavioral modification and Lorcaserin for Overweight and Obesity Management in Diabetes Mellitus), which is a one-year, randomized, double-blind and placebo-controlled trial that is expected to enroll approximately 600 obese patients with type 2 diabetes. Assuming positive data from BLOOM and BLOSSOM, we plan to file a New Drug Application, or NDA, with the United States Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, by the end of 2009.

A standardized program of diet and exercise advice is included in all of the lorcaserin Phase 3 trials, and the primary efficacy endpoint in the trials is the proportion of patients with a 5% or greater weight reduction from baseline at week 52. We are also studying several key secondary endpoints, including changes in serum lipids and blood pressure and, in the BLOOM-DM trial, HbA1c levels and other indicators of glycemic control. In contrast to BLOOM, patients with pre-existing FDA-defined valvulopathy and other echocardiographic abnormalities are included in BLOSSOM and BLOOM-DM.

In addition to lorcaserin, our other internal programs include programs evaluating APD791, APD916 and APD811. Due to the current global economic environment and our financial condition, we are currently focusing our efforts on lorcaserin and limiting our research and development efforts with respect to these other programs.

APD791 is an oral drug candidate that we discovered and are investigating for the treatment and prevention of arterial thrombosis and other related conditions. We have completed Phase 1a and Phase 1b clinical trials of APD791 evaluating the compound s safety, pharmacokinetics and pharmacodynamics in healthy volunteers. APD916 is an oral drug candidate we discovered and are investigating for the treatment of narcolepsy and cataplexy, and potentially for other indications. Subject to our financial resources and prioritization of lorcaserin, we intend to file an Investigational New Drug, or IND, application for APD916 with FDA in 2009. We are also developing APD811, our preclinical drug candidate for the treatment of pulmonary arterial hypertension.

1

Table of Contents

In addition to internal programs, we have partnerships with pharmaceutical companies, including Merck and Ortho-McNeil-Janssen. Our Merck partnership is focused on niacin receptor agonists as treatments for atherosclerosis and other disorders. In October 2008, we announced that Merck completed a randomized, double-blind, placebo-controlled Phase 1 program of a second generation oral niacin receptor agonist under our partnership, and, in February 2009, we announced that Merck initiated a Phase 2 clinical trial of this niacin receptor agonist. Our Ortho-McNeil-Janssen partnership is focused on receptor agonists of an orphan GPCR, known as GPR119, as treatments for diabetes and other disorders. In December 2008, we announced that Ortho-McNeil-Janssen initiated a first-in-human Phase 1 clinical trial of APD597, a novel, oral drug candidate discovered by Arena.

We intend to commercialize our drug candidates with partners or independently. We have not received regulatory approval for marketing or selling any drugs. We have also not generated commercial revenues from selling any drugs other than in connection with manufacturing drugs for Siegfried Ltd.

The pharmaceutical marketplace in which we operate includes many large, well-established companies competing with us to develop or market treatments for the same diseases and disorders. See Risk Factors.

Arena Pharmaceuticals[®], Arena[®] and our corporate logo are registered service marks of Arena. CART and BRL Screening are unregistered service marks of Arena. APD is an abbreviation for Arena Pharmaceuticals Development.

We incorporated in the state of Delaware in April 1997. Our corporate offices are located at 6166 Nancy Ridge Drive, San Diego, California 92121. Our telephone number is (858) 453-7200. Our website address is www.arenapharm.com. Information contained in our website does not constitute part of this prospectus.

Unless otherwise specified or required by context, references in this prospectus to we, us, our and Arena refer to Arena Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries on a consolidated basis.

Risk Factors

An investment in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. Before you make a decision to invest in our common stock, you should consider carefully the risks described in the section entitled Risk Factors contained in our annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008, as filed with the SEC on March 16, 2009, which is incorporated herein by reference in its entirety, as well as any amendment or update thereto reflected in our subsequent filings with the SEC. If any of these risks actually occur, our business, operating results, prospects or financial condition could be materially and adversely affected. This could cause the trading price of our common stock to decline and you may lose part or all of your investment. Moreover, the risks described are not the only ones that we face. Additional risks not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may also affect our business, operating results, prospects or financial condition.

Forward-Looking Statements

This prospectus, including the documents that we incorporate by reference herein, contains, and any applicable prospectus supplement including the documents we incorporate by reference therein may contain, forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or Securities Act, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or Exchange Act. These forward-looking statements can generally be identified as such because the context of the statements will include words such as may, will, intends, plans, believes, anticipates, expects, estimates, predicts, potential, continue, or opportunity, the negative of these words or words of similar Similarly, statements that describe our future plans, strategies, intentions, expectations, objectives, goals or prospects are

2

Table of Contents

also forward-looking statements. Discussions containing these forward-looking statements may be found, among other places, in Business and Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations incorporated by reference from our most recent annual report on Form 10-K and our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q for the quarters ended subsequent to our filing of such annual report on Form 10-K with the SEC, as well as any amendments thereto reflected in subsequent filings with the SEC. These forward-looking statements are or will be, as applicable, based largely on our expectations, beliefs and projections about future events and future trends affecting our business, and so are or will be, as applicable, subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated in the forward-looking statements. The risks and uncertainties include, among others, those referenced in Risk Factors above and in any applicable prospectus supplement and any documents incorporated by reference herein or therein.

In addition, past financial or operating performance is not necessarily a reliable indicator of future performance and you should not use our historical performance to anticipate results or future period trends. We can give no assurances that any of the events anticipated by the forward-looking statements will occur or, if any of them do, what impact they will have on our results of operations and financial condition. Except as required by law, we undertake no obligation to publicly revise our forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances that arise after the date of this prospectus or the prospectus supplement or the date of documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus that include forward-looking statements.

Use of Proceeds

Except as described in any prospectus supplement, we currently intend to use the net proceeds from the sale of our common stock under this prospectus for the clinical and preclinical development of our internally discovered drug candidates, for discovery research for new drug candidates, for general corporate purposes, including working capital, and potentially for the commercialization of any approved drugs.

Description of Capital Stock

As of the date of this prospectus, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, as amended, authorizes us to issue 142,500,000 shares of common stock, par value \$.0001 per share, and 7,500,000 shares of preferred stock, par value \$.0001 per share. As of March 23, 2009, 74,194,462 shares of common stock were outstanding. To date, our board of directors has designated 350,000 of the authorized shares of preferred stock as Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock (the Series A Preferred Stock), which series is described in greater detail below under Share Purchase Rights Plan. As of March 23, 2009, no shares of Series A Preferred Stock were outstanding.

The following summary describes the material terms of our capital stock and stockholder rights plan. The description of capital stock and stockholder rights plan is qualified by reference to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, our bylaws, the certificate of designations of our Series A Preferred Stock, and our stockholder rights plan, which are incorporated by reference as exhibits into the registration statement to which this prospectus relates.

Common Stock

Voting. Common stockholders are entitled to one vote per share for the election of directors and on all other matters that require common stockholder approval.

Dividends and Other Distributions. Holders of our common stock are entitled to share in an equal amount per share in any dividends declared by our board of directors on the common stock and paid out of legally available assets.

3

Table of Contents

Distribution on Dissolution. Subject to any preferential rights of any outstanding preferred stock, in the event of our liquidation, dissolution or winding up, holders of our common stock are entitled to share ratably in the assets remaining after payment of liabilities and the liquidation preferences of any outstanding preferred stock.

Other Rights. Our common stock does not carry any preemptive rights enabling a holder to subscribe for, or receive shares of, any class of our common stock or any other securities convertible into shares of any class of our common stock, or any redemption rights.

Preferred Stock

Under our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, as amended, our board of directors has the authority, without further action by stockholders, to designate up to 7,500,000 shares of preferred stock in one or more series and to fix the rights, preferences, privileges, qualifications and restrictions granted to or imposed upon the preferred stock, including dividend rights, conversion rights, voting rights and terms of redemption, liquidation preference and sinking fund terms, any or all of which may be greater than the rights of the common stock.

The issuance of preferred stock could adversely affect the voting power of holders of common stock and reduce the likelihood that common stockholders will receive dividend payments and payments upon liquidation. The issuance could have the effect of decreasing the market price of the common stock. The issuance of preferred stock also could have the effect of delaying, deterring or preventing a change in control of us.

Share Purchase Rights Plan. Each outstanding share of our common stock has attached to it one preferred share purchase right, which we refer to as a Right. Each Right entitles the registered holder to purchase from us one one-hundredth of a share of Series A Preferred Stock at a price of \$36 (the Purchase Price), subject to adjustment. The description and terms of the Rights are set forth in a Rights Agreement dated as of October 30, 2002, as amended, between us and Computershare Trust Company, Inc. as Rights Agent.

Until the earlier to occur of (i) 10 days following a public announcement that a person or group of affiliated or associated persons (an Acquiring Person) have acquired beneficial ownership of 15% or more of our outstanding common stock or (ii) 10 business days (or such later date as may be determined by action of our board of directors prior to such time as any person or group of affiliated persons becomes an Acquiring Person) following the commencement of, or announcement of an intention to make, a tender offer or exchange offer the consummation of which would result in the beneficial ownership by a person or group of 15% or more of our outstanding common stock (the earlier of such dates being called the Distribution Date), the Rights will be evidenced, with respect to any of our common stock certificates outstanding as of November 13, 2002, by such common stock certificate with a copy of the Summary of Rights in the form attached as Exhibit C to the Rights Agreement.

The Rights Agreement provides that none of our directors or officers shall be deemed to beneficially own any of our common stock owned by any other director or officer by virtue of such persons acting in their capacities as such, including, without limitation, in connection with any formulation and publication of our board of directors recommendation of its position, and any actions taken in furtherance thereof, with respect to any acquisition proposal relating to Arena, a tender or exchange offer for any of our common stock or any solicitation of proxies with respect to any of our common stock.

The Rights Agreement provides that, until the Distribution Date (or earlier redemption or expiration of the Rights), the Rights will be transferred with and only with our common stock. Until the Distribution Date (or earlier redemption or expiration of the Rights), new common stock certificates issued after November 13, 2002, upon transfer or new issuance of our common stock will contain a notation incorporating the Rights Agreement by reference. Until the Distribution Date (or earlier redemption or expiration of the Rights), the surrender for

4

Table of Contents

transfer of any certificates for our common stock outstanding as of November 13, 2002, even without such notation or a copy of the Summary of Rights attached thereto, will also constitute the transfer of the Rights associated with our common stock represented by such certificate. As soon as practicable following the Distribution Date, separate certificates evidencing the Rights (Right Certificates) will be mailed to holders of record of our common stock as of the close of business on the Distribution Date and such separate Right Certificates alone will evidence the Rights.

The Rights are not exercisable until the Distribution Date. The Rights will expire on October 30, 2012, (the Final Expiration Date), unless the Final Expiration Date is extended or the Rights are earlier redeemed or exchanged by us, in each case, as described below.

The Purchase Price payable, and the number of shares of the Series A Preferred Stock or other securities or property issuable, upon exercise of the Rights are subject to adjustment from time to time to prevent dilution (i) in the event of a stock dividend on, or a subdivision, combination or reclassification of, the Series A Preferred Stock, (ii) upon the grant to holders of the Series A Preferred Stock of certain rights or warrants to subscribe for or purchase Series A Preferred Stock at a price, or securities convertible into Series A Preferred Stock with a conversion price, less than the then current market price of the Series A Preferred Stock or (iii) upon the distribution to holders of the Series A Preferred Stock of evidences of indebtedness or assets (excluding regular periodic cash dividends paid out of earnings or retained earnings or dividends payable in Series A Preferred Stock) or of subscription rights or warrants (other than those referred to above).

The number of outstanding Rights and the number of one one-hundredths of a share of Series A Preferred Stock issuable upon exercise of each Right are also subject to adjustment in the event of a stock split of our common stock or a stock dividend on our common stock payable in our common stock or subdivisions, consolidations or combinations of our common stock occurring, in any such case, prior to the Distribution Date.

Series A Preferred Stock purchasable upon exercise of the Rights will not be redeemable. Once issued upon exercise of Rights, each share of Series A Preferred Stock will be entitled to a minimum preferential quarterly dividend payment of \$1 per share but will be entitled to an aggregate dividend of 100 times the dividend declared per share of our common stock. In the event of liquidation, the holders of outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock will be entitled to a minimum preferential liquidation payment of \$100 per share but will be entitled to an aggregate payment of 100 times the payment made per share of our common stock. Each outstanding share of Series A Preferred Stock will have 100 votes, voting together with our common stock. Finally, in the event of any merger, consolidation or other transaction in which our common stock is exchanged, each outstanding share of Series A Preferred Stock will be entitled to receive 100 times the amount received per share of our common stock. These rights are protected by customary antidilution provisions.

Because of the nature of the Series A Preferred Stock s dividend, liquidation and voting rights, the value of the one one-hundredth interest in a share of Series A Preferred Stock purchasable upon exercise of each Right should approximate the value of one share of our common stock.

In the event that any person or group of affiliated or associated persons becomes an Acquiring Person, the Rights Agreement provides that proper provision shall be made so that each holder of a Right, other than Rights beneficially owned by the Acquiring Person (which will thereafter be void), will thereafter have the right to receive (subject to adjustment) upon exercise thereof at the then current Purchase Price, that number of shares of our common stock having a market value of two times the Purchase Price. At any time after any person or group becomes an Acquiring Person and prior to the acquisition by such person or group of 50% or more of our outstanding common stock, our board of directors may exchange the Rights (other than Rights owned by such person or group, which will have become void), in whole or in part, at an exchange ratio of one share of our common stock, or one one-hundredth of a share of Series A Preferred Stock (or of a share of a class or series of our preferred stock having equivalent rights, preferences and privileges), per Right (subject to adjustment).

5

Table of Contents

In the event that we are acquired in a merger or other business combination transaction or 50% or more of our consolidated assets or earning power are sold after a person or group has become an Acquiring Person, proper provision will be made so that each holder of a Right will thereafter have the right to receive, upon the exercise thereof at the then current Purchase Price, that number of shares of common stock of the acquiring company which at the time of such transaction will have a market value of two times the Purchase Price.

With certain exceptions, no adjustment in the Purchase Price will be required until cumulative adjustments require an adjustment of at least 1% in the Purchase Price. No fractional shares of Series A Preferred Stock will be issued (other than fractions which are integral multiples of one one-hundredth of a share of Series A Preferred Stock, which may, at our election, be evidenced by depositary receipts) and in lieu thereof, an adjustment in cash will be made based on the market price of the Series A Preferred Stock on the last trading day prior to the date of exercise.

At any time prior to the acquisition by a person or group of affiliated or associated persons of beneficial ownership of 15% or more of our outstanding common stock, our board of directors may redeem the Rights in whole, but not in part, at a price of \$.01 per Right (the Redemption Price). The redemption of the Rights may be made effective at such time on such basis with such conditions as our board of directors in its sole discretion may establish.

The terms of the Rights may be amended by our board of directors without the consent of the holders of the Rights, including an amendment to (i) fix a Final Expiration Date later than October 30, 2012, (ii) reduce the Redemption Price or (iii) increase the Purchase Price, except that from and after such time as any person or group of affiliated or associated persons becomes an Acquiring Person no such amendment may adversely affect the interests of the holders of the Rights (other than the Acquiring Person and its affiliates and associates).

Until a Right is exercised, the holder thereof, as such, will have no rights as a stockholder of Arena, including, without limitation, the right to vote or to receive dividends.

Anti-Takeover Provisions

Delaware Law. We are governed by the provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law. In general, Section 203 prohibits a publicly held Delaware corporation from engaging in a business combination with an interested stockholder for a period of three years after the date of the transaction in which the person became an interested stockholder, unless (i) before the date that the person became an interested stockholder, our board of directors approved either the business combination or the transaction which makes the person an interested stockholder, (ii) the interested stockholder owned at least 85% of the voting stock of the corporation outstanding at the time the transaction commenced, excluding for purposes of determining the number of shares outstanding (a) shares owned by persons who are directors and also officers and (b) shares owned by employee stock plans in which employee participants do not have the right to determine confidentially whether shares held subject to the plan will be tendered in a tender or exchange offer, or (iii) after the date that the person became an interested stockholder, the business combination is approved by our board of directors and the vote of at least 66½3% of our outstanding voting stock that is not owned by the interested stockholder. Generally, a business combination includes a merger, asset sale or other transaction resulting in a financial benefit to the stockholder. An interested stockholder is a person who either owns 15% or more of our outstanding voting stock. The statute could have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in our control.

Bylaw and Certificate of Incorporation Provisions. Our bylaws provide that special meetings of our stockholders may be called by our board of directors or President. Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation (i) specifies that the authorized number of directors shall be fixed by our board of directors in the manner provided by our bylaws, which provide that the number of directors constituting our board of directors

6

Table of Contents

shall be fixed from time to time by resolution passed by a majority of our board of directors and (ii) does not include a provision for cumulative voting for directors. Under cumulative voting, a minority stockholder holding a sufficient percentage of a class of shares may be able to ensure the election of one or more directors. These and other provisions contained in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws could delay or discourage transactions involving an actual or potential change in control of us or our management, including transactions in which stockholders might otherwise receive a premium for their shares over then current prices. Such provisions could also limit the ability of stockholders to remove current management or approve transactions that stockholders may deem to be in their best interests and could adversely affect the price of our common stock.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

The transfer agent and registrar for our common stock is Computershare Trust Company, N.A.

Listing on the Nasdaq Global Market

Our common stock is listed on the Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol ARNA.

Plan of Distribution

We may sell our common stock covered by this prospectus in any of three ways (or in any combination):

to or through underwriters or dealers;

directly to one or more purchasers; or

through agents.

We may distribute the common stock:

from time to time in one or more transactions at a fixed price or prices, which may be changed from time to time;

at market prices prevailing at the time of sale;

at prices related to the prevailing market prices; or

Each time we offer and sell shares of our common stock covered by this prospectus, we will provide a prospectus supplement or supplements that will describe the method of distribution and set forth the terms of the offering, including:

the name or names of any underwriters, dealers or agents;

at negotiated prices.

the amounts of securities underwritten or purchased by each of them;

the purchase price of the common stock and the proceeds we will receive from the sale;

any over-allotment options under which underwriters may purchase additional common stock from us;

any underwriting discounts or commissions or agency fees and other items constituting underwriters or agents compensation;

the public offering price of the common stock;

any discounts, commissions or concessions allowed or reallowed or paid to dealers; and

any securities exchange or market on which the common stock may be listed.

7

Table of Contents

Any public offering price and any discounts or concessions allowed or reallowed or paid to dealers may be changed from time to time. We may determine the price or other terms of the common stock offered under this prospectus by use of an electronic auction. We will describe how any auction will determine the price or any other terms, how potential investors may participate in the auction and the nature of the obligations of the underwriter, dealer or agent in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Underwriters or dealers may offer and sell the offered common stock from time to time in one or more transactions, including negotiated transactions, at a fixed public offering price or at varying prices determined at the time of sale. If underwriters or dealers are used in the sale of any common stock, the common stock will be acquired by the underwriters or dealers for their own account and may be resold from time to time in one or more transactions described above. The common stock may be either offered to the public through underwriting syndicates represented by managing underwriters, or directly by underwriters or dealers. Generally, the underwriters or dealers obligations to purchase the common stock will be subject to certain conditions precedent. The underwriters or dealers will be obligated to purchase all of the common stock if they purchase any of the common stock, unless otherwise specified in the prospectus supplement. We may use underwriters with whom we have a material relationship. We will describe the nature of any such relationship in the prospectus supplement, naming the underwriter.

We may sell the common stock through agents from time to time. The prospectus supplement will name any agent involved in the offer or sale of the common stock and any commissions we pay to them. Generally, any agent will be acting on a best efforts basis for the period of its appointment. We may authorize underwriters, dealers or agents to solicit offers by certain purchasers to purchase the common stock from us at the public offering price set forth in the prospectus supplement pursuant to delayed delivery contracts providing for payment and delivery on a specified date in the future. The contracts will be subject only to those conditions set forth in the prospectus supplement, and the prospectus supplement will set forth any commissions we pay for solicitation of these contracts.

Agents, dealers and underwriters may be entitled to indemnification by us against certain civil liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act, or to contribution with respect to payments which the agents, dealers or underwriters may be required to make in respect thereof. Agents, dealers and underwriters may be customers of, engage in transactions with, or perform services for us in the ordinary course of business.

Any underwriter may engage in overallotment, stabilizing transactions, short covering transactions and penalty bids in accordance with Regulation M under the Exchange Act. Overallotment involves sales in excess of the offering size, which create a short position. This short sales position may involve either covered short sales or naked short sales. Covered short sales are short sales made in an amount not greater than the underwriters over-allotment option to purchase additional shares in this offering described above. The underwriters may close out any covered short position either by exercising their over-allotment option or by purchasing shares in the open market. To determine how they will close the covered short position, the underwriters will consider, among other things, the price of shares available for purchase in the open market, as compared to the price at which they may purchase shares through the over-allotment option. Naked short sales are short sales in excess of the over-allotment option. The underwriters must close out any naked short position by purchasing shares in the open market. A naked short position is more likely to be created if the underwriters are concerned that, in the open market after pricing, there may be downward pressure on the price of the shares that could adversely affect investors who purchase shares in this offering. Stabilizing transactions permit bids to purchase the underlying security for the purpose of fixing the price of the security so long as the stabilizing bids do not exceed a specified maximum. Penalty bids permit the underwriters to reclaim a selling concession from a dealer when the securities originally sold by the dealer are purchased in a covering transaction to cover short positions.

Similar to other purchase transactions, an underwriter s purchase to cover the syndicate short sales or to stabilize the market price of our common stock may have the effect of raising or maintaining the market price of our common stock or preventing or mitigating a decline in the market price of our common stock. As a result, the

8

Table of Contents

price of the shares of our common stock may be higher than the price that might otherwise exist in the open market. The imposition of a penalty bid might also have an effect on the price of the shares if it discourages resales of the shares.

Neither we nor the underwriters makes any representation or prediction as to the effect that the transactions described above may have on the price of the shares. If such transactions are commenced, they may be discontinued without notice at any time.

Equity Line of Credit

On March 23, 2009, we entered into what is sometimes termed an equity line of credit arrangement with Azimuth Opportunity Ltd., or Azimuth. Specifically, we entered into a Common Stock Purchase Agreement, or the Purchase Agreement, that provides that, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth therein, Azimuth is committed to purchase up \$50 million worth of shares of our common stock over the 18-month term of the Purchase Agreement; provided, however, in no event may we sell under the Purchase Agreement more than 14,838,891 shares of common stock, which is equal to one share less than twenty percent of our outstanding shares of common stock on the effective date of the Purchase Agreement. From time to time over the term of the Purchase Agreement, and at our sole discretion, we may present Azimuth with draw down notices to purchase our common stock over ten consecutive trading days or such other period mutually agreed upon by us and Azimuth, or the draw down period, with each draw down subject to limitations based on the price of our common stock and a limit of 2.5% of our market capitalization at the time of such draw down. We are able to present Azimuth with up to 24 draw down notices during the term of the Purchase Agreement, with only one such draw down notice allowed per draw down period and a minimum of five trading days required between each draw down period.

Once presented with a draw down notice, Azimuth is required to purchase a pro rata portion of the shares on each trading day during the trading period on which the daily volume weighted average price for our common stock exceeds a threshold price determined by us for such draw down. The per share purchase price for these shares will equal the daily volume weighted average price of our common stock on each date during the draw down period on which shares are purchased, less a discount ranging from 3.00% to 6.50%, based on the trading price of our common stock. If the daily volume weighted average price of our common stock falls below the threshold price on any trading day during a draw down period, the Purchase Agreement provides that Azimuth will not be required to purchase the pro-rata portion of shares of common stock allocated to that day. However, at its election, Azimuth may buy the pro-rata portion of shares allocated to that day at the threshold price less the discount described above.

The Purchase Agreement also provides that, from time to time and at our sole discretion, we may grant Azimuth the right to exercise one or more options to purchase additional shares of our common stock during each draw down period for an amount of shares specified by us based on the trading price of our common stock. Upon Azimuth s exercise of an option, we would sell to Azimuth the shares of our common stock subject to the option at a price equal to the greater of the daily volume weighted average price of our common stock on the day Azimuth notifies us of its election to exercise its option or the threshold price for the option determined by us, less a discount calculated in the same manner as it is calculated in the draw down notices.

In addition to our issuance of shares of common stock to Azimuth pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, the registration statement to which this prospectus relates also covers the sale of those shares from time to time by Azimuth to the public. Azimuth is an underwriter within the meaning of Section 2(a)(11) of the Securities Act.

Azimuth has informed us that it will use an unaffiliated broker-dealer to effectuate all sales, if any, of common stock that it may purchase from us pursuant to the Purchase Agreement. Such sales will be made on the Nasdaq Global Market at prices and at terms then prevailing or at prices related to the then current market price. Each such unaffiliated broker-dealer will be an underwriter within the meaning of Section 2(a)(11) of the

9

Table of Contents

Securities Act. Azimuth has informed us that each such broker-dealer will receive commissions from Azimuth which will not exceed customary brokerage commissions. Azimuth may also pay other expenses associated with the sale of the common stock it acquires pursuant to the Purchase Agreement.

The shares of common stock issued under the Purchase Agreement may be sold in one or more of the following manners:

ordinary brokerage transactions and transactions in which the broker solicits purchasers; or

a block trade in which the broker or dealer so engaged will attempt to sell the shares as agent, but may position and resell a portion of the block as principal to facilitate the transaction.

Azimuth has agreed that during the term of and for a period of 90 days after the termination of the Purchase Agreement, neither Azimuth nor any of its affiliates will, directly or indirectly, sell any of our securities except the shares that it owns or has the right to purchase pursuant to the provisions of a draw down notice. Azimuth has agreed that during the periods listed above neither it nor any of its affiliates will enter into a short position with respect to shares of our common stock except that Azimuth may sell shares that it is obligated to purchase under a pending draw down notice but has not yet taken possession of so long as Azimuth covers any such sales with the shares purchased pursuant to such draw down notice. Azimuth has further agreed that during the periods listed above it will not grant any option to purchase or acquire any right to dispose or otherwise dispose for value of any shares of our common stock or any securities convertible into, or exchangeable for, or warrants to purchase, any shares of our common stock, or enter into any swap, hedge or other agreement that transfers, in whole or in part, the economic risk of ownership of our common stock, except for the sales permitted by the prior two sentences.

In addition, Azimuth and any unaffiliated broker-dealer will be subject to liability under the federal securities laws and must comply with the requirements of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act, including, without limitation, Rule 10b-5 and Regulation M under the Exchange Act. These rules and regulations may limit the timing of purchases and sales of shares of common stock by Azimuth or any unaffiliated broker-dealer. Under these rules and regulations, Azimuth and any unaffiliated broker-dealer:

may not engage in any stabilization activity in connection with our securities;

must furnish each broker which offers shares of our common stock covered by the prospectus that is a part of our Registration Statement with the number of copies of such prospectus and any prospectus supplement which are required by each broker; and

may not bid for or purchase any of our securities or attempt to induce any person to purchase any of our securities other than as permitted under the Exchange Act.

These restrictions may affect the marketability of the shares of common stock purchased and sold by Azimuth and any unaffiliated broker-dealer.

We have agreed to indemnify and hold harmless Azimuth, any unaffiliated broker-dealer and each person who controls Azimuth or any unaffiliated broker-dealer against certain liabilities, including certain liabilities under the Securities Act. We have agreed to pay up to \$35,000 of Azimuth s reasonable attorneys fees and expenses (exclusive of disbursements and out-of-pocket expenses) incurred by Azimuth in connection with the preparation, negotiation, execution and delivery of the Purchase Agreement and related transaction documentation. We have also agreed to pay certain fees and expenses incurred by Azimuth in connection with any amendments, modifications or waivers of the Purchase Agreement, ongoing due diligence of our company and other transaction expenses associated with fixed requests made by us from time to time during the term of the Purchase Agreement, provided that we shall not be required to pay any reimbursement for any such expenses in any calendar quarter in which we provide a fixed request notice. Further, if we issue a draw down notice and fail to deliver the shares to Azimuth on the applicable settlement date, and such failure continues for ten trading days, we have agreed to pay Azimuth liquidated damages in cash or restricted shares of our common stock, at Azimuth s option.

10

Table of Contents

Azimuth has agreed to indemnify and hold harmless us and each of our directors, officers and persons who control us against certain liabilities, including certain liabilities under the Securities Act that may be based upon written information furnished by Azimuth to us for inclusion in this prospectus or any other prospectus or prospectus supplement related to this transaction.

Upon each sale of our common stock to Azimuth under the Purchase Agreement, we have also agreed to pay Reedland Capital Partners, an Institutional Division of Financial West Group, a placement fee equal to 1.00% of the aggregate dollar amount of common stock purchased by Azimuth. We have agreed to indemnify and hold harmless Reedland against certain liabilities, including certain liabilities under the Securities Act.

Legal Matters

The validity of the securities being offered hereby will be passed upon by Cooley Godward Kronish LLP, San Diego, California.

Experts

Ernst & Young LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, has audited our consolidated financial statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008, and the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, as set forth in their reports, which are incorporated by reference in this prospectus and elsewhere in the registration statement. Our financial statements are incorporated by reference in reliance on Ernst & Young LLP s reports, given on their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

Where You Can Find More Information

We file annual, quarterly and special reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. You may read and copy any document we file at the SEC s public reference room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C., 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the operation of the public reference room. Our SEC filings are also available to the public at the SEC s website at http://www.sec.gov.

Incorporation of Certain Information by Reference

The SEC allows us to incorporate by reference the information we file with them, which means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to those documents instead of having to repeat the information in this prospectus. The information incorporated by reference is considered to be part of this prospectus, and later information that we file with the SEC will automatically update and supersede this information. We incorporate by reference the documents listed below and any future filings we will make with the SEC under Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14, or 15(d) of the Exchange Act after the date of this prospectus until the termination of the offering of the shares covered by this prospectus (other than information furnished under Item 2.02 or Item 7.01 of Form 8-K):

our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 (filed on March 16, 2009);

our current reports on Form 8-K filed on January 29, 2009, February 18, 2009, February 26, 2009 and March 23, 2009;

the description of our Stockholders Rights Plan contained in our registration statement on Form 8-A filed on November 5, 2002, as amended on December 30, 2003 and November 16, 2006, including any amendments or reports filed for the purposes of updating such description; and

11

Table of Contents

the description of our common stock contained in our registration statement on Form 8-A filed on July 26, 2000, including any amendment or reports filed for the purpose of updating such description.

You can request a copy of these filings, at no cost, by writing or telephoning us at the following address or telephone number:

Arena Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

6166 Nancy Ridge Drive

San Diego, California 92121

(858) 453-7200

Attn: Investor Relations

This prospectus relates to a registration statement we filed with the SEC. That registration statement and the exhibits filed along with the registration statement contain more information about us and the shares in this offering. Because information about documents referred to in this prospectus is not always complete, you should read the full documents which are filed as exhibits to the registration statement. You may read and copy the full registration statement and its exhibits at the SEC s public reference rooms or their website.

12

Table of Contents

12,500,000 Shares

ARENA PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

Common Stock

PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

Piper Jaffray

July 8, 2009